
-1- 

 

 
 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

 
AGENDA 

 
October 16, 2017 

 
 

 All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department 
located in City Hall at 303 East “B” St., Ontario, CA  91764. 

 
MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 1:30 PM IN ONTARIO CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

LOCATED AT 303 East “B” St. 
  
Al Boling, City Manager 
Hassan Haghani, Development Director 
John P. Andrews, Economic Development Director 
Kevin Shear, Building Official 
Scott Murphy, Assistant Development Director (Planning) 
Louis Abi-Younes, City Engineer 
Chief Brad Kaylor, Police Department 
Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department 
Scott Burton, Utilities General Manager 
Brent Schultz, Housing and Municipal Services Director 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Citizens wishing to address the Development Advisory Board on any matter that is not on the 
agenda may do so at this time.  Please state your name and address clearly for the record and 
limit your remarks to five minutes. 

 
Please note that while the Development Advisory Board values your comments, the members 
cannot respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the forthcoming 
agenda. 
 
 



-2-

AGENDA ITEMS 

For each of the items listed below the public will be provided an opportunity to speak.  After a staff 
report is provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing.  At that time the applicant will be 
allowed five (5) minutes to make a presentation on the case.  Members of the public will then be allowed 
five (5) minutes each to speak.  The Development Advisory Board may ask the speakers questions 
relative to the case and the testimony provided.  The question period will not count against your time 
limit.  After all persons have spoken, the applicant will be allowed three minutes to summarize or rebut 
any public testimony.  The chairperson will then close the public hearing portion of the hearing and 
deliberate the matter. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

MINUTES APPROVAL 

A. Development Advisory Board Minutes of September 18, 2017, approved as written.

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE TRACT MAP REVIEW
FOR FILE NO. PMTT16-003/TT 20012: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT16-
003/TT 20012) to subdivide 37.47 acres of land into 176 numbered lots and 47 lettered lots
for public streets, landscape neighborhood edge areas and common open space purposes,
for property generally located north of Ontario Ranch Road and approximately 400 feet
west of Turner Avenue, within the Low Density Residential (LDR) district of Planning
Area 8A of The Avenue Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were
previously analyzed in an addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH#
2005071109) that was adopted by the City Council on June 17, 2014.  All adopted
mitigation measures of the addendum shall be a condition of approval for the project and
are incorporated herein by reference. The proposed project is located within the Airport
Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was evaluated and found to be
consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plans
(ALUCP) for ONT Airport.  (APNs: 0218-201-20, 0218-201-26 and 0218-201-27);
submitted by Ontario Avenida Associates, LLC. Planning Commission action is
required.

1. CEQA Determination

No action necessary – use of previous addendum to an EIR

2. File No. PMTT16-003 (Tract Map)

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial



 
 

-3- 

C.        ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW  
FOR FILE NO. PMTT16-021 (PM 19787): A Tentative Parcel Map (File No. PMTT16-
021) to subdivide approximately 76.68 acres of land into 4 parcels and 2 letter lots for 
public streets and landscape neighborhood edge purposes, for property located along the 
southeast corner of Ontario Ranch Road and Archibald Avenue, within Planning Areas 7 
and 8 of the Grand Park Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were 
previously analyzed in the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand 
Park Specific Plan (SCH# 2012061057) that was adopted by City Council on January 21, 
2014.  This project introduces no new significant environmental impacts. All adopted 
mitigation measures of the EIR shall be a condition of approval for the project and are 
incorporated herein by reference. The proposed project is located within the Airport 
Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be 
consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 218-241-24) submitted by Loyola Properties 1, 
LP.  Planning Commission action is required. 
 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – use of previous EIR 
       

2. File No. PMTT16-021 (Parcel Map) 
 

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 
D. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE TRACT MAP REVIEW  

FOR FILE NO. PMTT17-002/TT 18937: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT17-
002/TT 18937) to subdivide 23.66 acres of land into: 1) 48 single-family numbered lots (6-
Pack Cluster); 2) 7 multi-family numbered lots for Condominium Purposes (Lots 49 thru 
55); and 3) 41 lettered lots for public streets, landscape neighborhood edges and common 
open space purposes, for property located at the northeast corner of Archibald Avenue and 
Ontario Ranch Road, within the Low Density Residential (LDR) district of Planning Area 
7 of The Avenue Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were previously 
analyzed in an addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) that was 
adopted by the City Council on June 17, 2014.  All adopted mitigation measures of the 
addendum shall be a condition of approval for the project and are incorporated herein by 
reference. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport (ONT) and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies 
and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plans (ALUCP) for ONT Airport.  
(APN: 0218-201-18); submitted by Brookcal Ontario, LLC. Planning Commission 
action is required. 
 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – use of previous addendum of an EIR 
       

2. File No. PMTT17-002 (Tract Map) 
 
        Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 



 
 

-4- 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL  ASSESSMENT  AND  DEVELOPMENT   PLAN REVIEW  
FOR FILE NO. PDEV17-035: A Development Plan to construct 97 single-family homes 
on approximately 13.53 acres of land located at the southeast corner of Parkview Street 
and Parkplace Avenue, within the Conventional Small Lot Residential District of Planning 
Areas 16 and 17 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project 
were previously analyzed in an Addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 
2004011009) that was adopted by the City Council On April 21, 2015.  This project 
introduces no new significant environmental impacts. All adopted mitigation measures of 
the addendum shall be a condition of approval for the project and are incorporated herein 
by reference. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and 
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP);  
(APNs: 0218-022-01 & 0218-022-03) submitted by Woodside Homes.  Planning 
Commission action is required. 

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – use of previous addendum of an EIR 
       

2. File No. PDEV17-035 (Development Plan)  
 
        Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 

       
F. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR  

FILE NO. PDEV17-030: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-030) to construct 102 
single-family dwellings on 8.76 acres of land located at the southeast corner of Parkview 
Street and Celebration Avenue, within the Cluster Homes Residential district of Planning 
Area 25 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were 
previously analyzed in an addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 
2004011009) that was adopted by the City Council on April 21, 2015.  All adopted 
mitigation measures of the addendum shall be a condition of approval for the project and 
are incorporated herein by reference. The proposed project is located within the Airport 
Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was evaluated and found to be 
consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plans 
(ALUCP) for ONT; (APNs: 0218-033-02, 0218-033-04) submitted by Taylor Morrison 
of California, LLC. Planning Commission action is required. 
 
1.   CEQA Determination    
 

           No action necessary – use of previous addendum of an EIR 
       
2.   File No. PDEV17-030 (Development Plan)  
 
      Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 

 
 
 
 
 





CITY OF ONTARIO 

Development Advisory Board 

Minutes 

September 18, 2017

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Khoi Do, Chairman, Engineering Department  
Kevin Shear, Building Department  
Charity Hernandez, Economic Development Agency  
Paul Ehrman, Fire Department  
Joe De Sousa, Housing and Municipal Services Agency 
Peter Tran, Municipal Utilities Company  
Rudy Zeledon, Planning Department  
Doug Sorel, Police Department  

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 

None 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 

Antonio Alejos, Engineering Department 
Luis Batres, Planning Department 
Gwen Berendsen, Planning Department 
Maureen Duran, Planning Department 
Chuck Mercier, Planning Department 
Henry Noh, Planning Department 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

No one responded from the audience. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Motion to approve the minutes of the September 6, 2017, meeting of
the Development Advisory Board was made by Mr. DeSousa; seconded by Mr. Zeledon; and approved
unanimously by those present (8-0).

Item A - 1 of 4



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes September 18, 2017 
Page 2 

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE
NO. PDEV16-035: A Development Plan to construct an 18,600-square foot industrial building on
1.43 acres of land located at the southeasterly corner of Excise Avenue and Metro Way, within the
Business Park land use district of the Acco Airport Center Specific Plan. The environmental
impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with Acco Airport Center Specific
Plan (File No. 4351-SP), for which an Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No.
90021134) was adopted by the City Council on January 19, 1993. This project introduces no new
significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence
Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the
policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP).
(APN: 0211-272-14); submitted by RedRock Development, Inc.

Representative Michael Morris of RedRock Development, Inc., was present and asked for
clarification on the first sentence in condition three of 2.34.  His concern was that it seemed overly
burdensome to be completely responsible for these improvements. Mr. Do explained that the
conditions were originally created this way and they would pay their fair share of improvements.
Mr. Do further explained there is one owner and three parcels, and the other parcels would construct
improvements when they came forward. Mr. Morris stated that the interpretation was fine but was
concerned with the way it is written. Mr. Do explained that the conditions were written this way
when the project originally was submitted. Mr. Morris asked if the conditions for other applicants
would be similarly written. Mr. Do responded that they definitley would.  Mr. Morris said he was
happy with that and had no other concerns.

Motion to approve File No.  PDEV16-035 subject to conditions was made by Mr. Shear; seconded
by Mr. DeSousa and approved unanimously by those present (8-0).

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND VARIANCE
REVIEW FOR FILE NOS.  PDEV17-008 & PVAR17-003:  A Development Plan (PDEV17-
008) to construct a 10,487 square foot commercial building on 0.88 acres of land and a Variance
(PVAR17-003) to deviate from the minimum parking street setback, along Euclid Avenue, from
20 to 9 feet, and to reduce the required parking from 42 to 40 spaces, for property located at the
northwest corner of Francis Street and Euclid Avenue, within the CN (Neighborhood Commercial)
zoning district and EA (Euclid Avenue) Overlay district. Staff has determined that the project is
categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
pursuant to Section 15305 (Class 5-Minor Alterations of Land Use Limitations) and 15332 (Class
32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA guidelines. The proposed project is located within
the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was evaluated and found to
be consistent with the policies and criteria of the ONT Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
(ALUCP). (APNs: 1050-281-01, 1050-281-02 and 1050-281-03); submitted by Clarkson
Properties, LP. Planning Commission action is required.

This item was continued until further notice. 

D ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE 
NO. PDEV16-044: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV16-044) to construct a residential 
apartment complex consisting of 6-units on 0.3 acres of land located at 1444 W. Stoneridge Court, 
within the MDR-25 (Medium Density Residential - 18.1 to 25.0 DUs/Acre) zoning district. Staff 
has determined that the project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 

Item A - 2 of 4



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes September 18, 2017 
Page 3 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development 
Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence 
Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the 
policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); 
(APNs: 1010-551-06); submitted by Brother Home Trading Corp. Planning Commission 
action is required. 

There were no representatives present. However, Project Planner, Luis Batres, indicated he 
had spoken to the applicant and stated they requested clarification regarding fire department 
access in conditions 2.0.  Deputy Fire Chief Paul Ehrman stated since this specific project cannot 
provide the requested conditions, they would be willing to make an exception.  Mr. Do informed 
Mr. Batres that based on the conversation with the applicant and based on the Fire Department’s 
exceptions, there would be ample time to make these exceptions.  Mr. Batres agreed and 
had no further concerns.  

Motion recommending approval of File No.  PDEV16-044 subject to conditions to the Planning 
Commission was made by Mr. DeSousa; seconded by Mr. Shear and approved unanimously by 
those present (8-0). 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE
NO. PDEV17-023: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-023) approval to construct 75 single-
family residential dwellings on 10.87 acres of land located within the Conventional Small Lot
Residential district of Planning Area 24 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, located at the southeast
corner of Celebration Avenue and Parkview Street.  The environmental impacts of this project were
previously analyzed in an addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) that
was adopted by the City Council on April 21, 2015.  All adopted mitigation measures of the
addendum shall be a condition of approval for the project and are incorporated herein by reference.
The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport
(ONT) and Chino Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and
criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plans (ALUCP) for ONT and Chino Airports.
(APNs: 0218-033-01, 0218-033-02, 0218-033-03(POR) & 0218-033-04(POR)); submitted by
The New Home Company Southern California, LLC. Planning Commission Action

Applicant Holly Slevcove of The New Homes Company Southern California, LLC, was present
and agreed to the conditions of approval. There were no further questions or concerns.

Motion recommending approval of File No. PDEV17-023 subject to conditions to the Planning
Commission was made by Mr. Zeledon; seconded by Mr. DeSousa and approved unanimously by
those present (8-0).

F. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE
NO. PDEV17-025: A Development Plan to construct 102 single-family dwellings on 10.39 acres
of land, located at the northeast corner of Merrill and Celebration Avenues, within Planning Area
26 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were previously
reviewed in conjunction with an Addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH
#2004011009), which was prepared in conjunction with File No. PSPA14-002, and was adopted
by the City Council on April 21, 2015. This project introduces no new significant environmental
impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International
Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APNs: 0218-033-03, 0218-033-04,

Item A - 3 of 4



Item A - 4 of 4



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
October 16, 2017 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PMTT16-003 

DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT16-003/TT 20012) to subdivide 37.47 acres 
of land into 176 numbered lots and 47 lettered lots for public streets, landscape neighborhood edge areas 
and common open space purposes, for property generally located north of Ontario Ranch Road and 
approximately 400 feet west of Turner Avenue, within the Low Density Residential (LDR) district of Planning 
Area 8A of The Avenue Specific Plan.  (APNs: 0218-201-20, 0218-201-26 and 0218-201-27); submitted 
by Ontario Avenida Associates, LLC. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

ONTARIO AVENIDA, LLC, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application 
requesting Tentative Tract Map approval, File No. PMTT16-003, as described in the subject of this Decision 
(herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 37.47 acres of land generally located
north of Ontario Ranch Road and approximately 400 feet west of Turner Avenue, and is depicted in Exhibit 
A: Project Location Map, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific 
plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site Agriculture/Dairy Low Density 
Residential 

The Avenue Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 8A – 
(LDR) 

North Vacant 
Low Density 

Residential and Public 
School 

The Avenue Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 6A – 
(LDR) Planning Area 
6B and 9B (Middle 

School) 

South Agriculture/Dairy 
Medium Density 

Residential and Public 
School 

Grand Park Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 7 – 
(HDR) and Planning 

Area 10 – (High 
School) 

East Agriculture Low Density 
Residential 

The Avenue Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 8B – 
(LDR) 

West Vacant Low Density 
Residential 

The Avenue Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 7 – 
(LMDR) 

(2) Project Description: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT16-003/TT 20012) to subdivide
37.47 acres of land into 176 numbered lots and 47 lettered lots for public streets, landscape neighborhood 
edge areas and common open space purposes, for property generally located north of Ontario Ranch Road 
and approximately 400 feet west of Turner Avenue.  The proposed project will provide additional 
conventional and alley loaded single-family home products within Planning Area 8A of The Avenue Specific 

Item B - 1 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-003 
October 16, 2017 

Page 2 

Plan (See Exhibit B: Tentative Tract Map 20012). The residential lots range in size from 5,000 to 6,974 
square feet for the single-family lots. The proposed lots exceed the Specific Plan’s minimum lot requirement 
of 4,250 square feet (Product Type 1B - Conventional) and 2,380 square feet (Product Type 2 - Alley 
Loaded). 

The previously approved Tentative Tract Map 18922 (“A” Map) for Brookfield Residential, facilitated the 
construction of various backbone streets and primary access points including Ontario Ranch Road. The 
project site will have access from Ontario Ranch Road and La Avenida Drive.  With the approval of the 
Tentative Tract Map, La Avenida Drive will be constructed along the northern frontage of the site and with 
direct access to Archibald Avenue. Additionally, the Tentative Tract Map will also facilitate the construction 
of the interior tract streets and private lanes that will provide access to the future residential development.  

The Tentative Tract Map will facilitate the construction of neighborhood parks, sidewalks, parkways, and 
open space areas within the tract. TOP Policy PR1-1 requires new developments to provide a minimum of 
2 acres of private park per 1,000 residents.  The proposed project is required to provide a 1.34 acre park 
to meet the minimum TOP private park requirement. To satisfy the park requirement, the applicant is 
constructing four neighborhood parks that will total 1.39 acres of park area and are strategically located 
throughout the project site to provide residents a variety of park options within walking distance.  

Part II—RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
File No. PSPA13-003, a(n) amendment to The Avenue Specific Plan for which a(n) addendum to The 
Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) was adopted by the City Council on June 17, 2014, and 
this Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts; and 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 

Item B - 2 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-003 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 3 

and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; 
 

WHEREAS, on October 16, 2017, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous addendum to The 
Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) and supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and 
information contained in the previous addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) 
and supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with File 
No. PSPA13-003, a(n) amendment to The Avenue Specific Plan for which a(n) addendum to The Avenue 
Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) was adopted by the City Council on June 17, 2014 
 

(2) The previous addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) contains a 
complete and accurate reporting of the environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) was 
completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario 
Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

(4) The previous addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) reflects 
the independent judgment of the Planning Commission; and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the previous addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109), and 
all mitigation measures previously adopted with the addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 
2005071109), are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 
2005071109) is not required for the Project, as the Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR 
(SCH# 2005071109) that will require major revisions to the addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR 
(SCH# 2005071109) due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial 
increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 

addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) was prepared, that will require major 

Item B - 3 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-003 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 4 

revisions to the addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) due to the involvement 
of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified 
significant effects; and 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the addendum to The Avenue 
Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) was certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the addendum 
to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109); or 

 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109); or 
 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) would substantially reduce one or 
more significant effects on the environment, but which the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one of the 
properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) 
of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the proposed project is consistent with the number 
of dwelling units (180) and density (4.5 DU/AC) specified in the Available Land Inventory. 

 
SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 

Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 

 

Item B - 4 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-003 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 5 

(1) The proposed Tentative Tract Map is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and 
exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The 
Ontario Plan, and applicable area and specific plans, and planned unit developments. The proposed 
Tentative Tract Map is located within the Low Density Residential land use district of the Policy Plan Land 
Use Map, and within Planning Area 8A (LDR) district of The Avenue Specific Plan. The proposed 
subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General 
Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to providing 
“a spectrum of housing types and price ranges that match the jobs in the City, and that make it possible for 
people to live and work in Ontario and maintain a quality of life” (Goal LU1). Furthermore, the project will 
promote the City’s policy to “incorporate a variety of land uses and building types that contribute to a 
complete community where residents at all stages of life, employers, workers, and visitors, have a wide 
spectrum of choices of where they can live, work, shop, and recreate within Ontario” (Policy LU1-6 
Complete Community).  In addition, the Tentative Tract Map meets all minimum size requirements and 
development standards specified within the Low Density Residential (Planning Area 8A – Product Types: 
1A, 1B and 2) land use district of The Avenue Specific Plan, therefore the proposed Tentative Tract Map is 
consistent with The Ontario Plan and The Avenue Specific Plan. 
 

(2) The design or improvement of the proposed Tentative Tract Map is consistent with 
the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable specific plans and planned unit 
developments. The proposed Tentative Tract Map is located within the Low Density Residential land use 
district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and within Planning Area 8A (LDR) district of The Avenue Specific 
Plan. The proposed design or improvement of the subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, 
and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario 
Plan, as the project will contribute to providing “[a] high level of design quality resulting in public spaces, 
streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct” (Goal CD2). Furthermore, 
the project will promote the City’s policy to “create distinct residential neighborhoods that are functional, 
have a sense of community, emphasize livability and social interaction, and are uniquely identifiable places 
through such elements as: 
 

 A pattern of smaller, walkable blocks that promote access, activity and safety; 
 Variable setbacks and parcel sizes to accommodate a diversity of housing types; 
 Traffic calming measures to slow traffic and promote walkability while maintaining 

acceptable fire protection and traffic flows; 
 Floor plans that encourage views onto the street and de-emphasize the visual and 

physical dominance of garages (introducing the front porch as the “outdoor living room”), as appropriate; 
and 

 Landscaped parkways, with sidewalks separated from the curb.” (Policy CD2-2 
Neighborhood Design). 
 
In addition, the Tentative Tract Map meets all minimum size requirements and development standards 
specified within the Low Density Residential (Planning Area 8A – Product Types: 1A, 1B and 2) land use 
district of The Avenue Specific Plan, therefore the proposed Tentative Tract Map is consistent with The 
Ontario Plan and The Avenue Specific Plan. 
 

(3) The site is physically suitable for the type of development proposed. The Tentative 
Tract Map to subdivide 37.47 acres of land into 176 numbered lots and 47 lettered lots for public streets, 
landscape neighborhood edge areas and common open space purposes, for property generally located 
north of Ontario Ranch Road and approximately 400 feet west of Turner Avenue. The proposed project will 
provide additional conventional and alley loaded single-family detached home products within Planning 
Area 8A of The Avenue Specific Plan. The residential lots range in size from 5,000 to 6,974 square feet for 
the single-family lots. The proposed lots exceed the Specific Plan’s minimum lot requirement of 4,250 
square feet (Product Type 1B - Conventional) and 2,380 square feet (Product Type 2 - Alley Loaded). The 
Specific Plan provides for the development of up to 180 residential dwelling units and a density of 4.5 

Item B - 5 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-003 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 6 

dwelling units per acre within Planning Area 8A.  The Tentative Tract Map proposes 176 dwelling units at 
a density of 4.4 dwelling units per acre.  The project site meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the 
Low Density Residential (Planning Area 8A – Product Types: 1A, 1B and 2) land use district of The Avenue 
Specific Plan, and is physically suitable for the type of residential development proposed in terms of zoning, 
land use and development activity proposed, and existing and proposed site conditions. 
 

(4) The site is physically suitable for the density/intensity of development proposed. 
The project site is proposed for residential development at a density of 4.4 DUs/acre. The Specific Plan 
provides for the development of up to 180 residential dwelling units and a density of 4.5 dwelling units per 
acre within Planning Area 8A.  The Tentative Tract Map proposes 176 dwelling units at a density of 4.4 
dwelling units per acre. The Tentative Tract Map proposes to subdivide 37.47 acres of land into: 1) 72 alley 
loaded single-family numbered lots and 2) 104 conventional single-family numbered lots for the construction 
of 176 single-family residential units within (Planning Area 8A) of The Avenue Specific Plan. The residential 
lots range in size from 5,000 to 6,974 square feet for the single-family lots. The proposed lots exceed the 
Specific Plan’s minimum lot requirement of 4,250 square feet (Product Type 1B - Conventional) and 2,380 
square feet (Product Type 2 - Alley Loaded) and is physically suitable for this proposed density/intensity of 
development.  
 

(5) The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or 
their habitat. The project site is not located in an area that has been identified as containing species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or 
regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, nor 
does the site contain any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community, and no wetland habitat is 
present on site; therefore, the design of the subdivision, or improvements proposed thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or their 
habitat.  In addition, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
an addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109). This application is consistent with the 
previously adopted EIR and introduces no new significant environmental impacts. 
 

(6) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, are not likely to 
cause serious public health problems. The design of the proposed subdivision, and the residential and 
infrastructure improvements proposed on the project site, are not likely to cause serious public health 
problems, as the project is not anticipated to involve the transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials 
during either construction or project implementation, include the use of hazardous materials or volatile fuels, 
nor are there any known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within close proximity to the subject 
site that use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a significant hazard to visitors or 
occupants to the project site.  In addition, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed 
in conjunction with the addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109).  This application 
is consistent with the previously adopted EIR and introduces no new significant environmental impacts. 
 

(7) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, will not conflict 
with easements acquired by the public at large for access through, or use of property within, the 
proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision has provided for all necessary public easements and 
dedications for access through, or use of property within, the proposed subdivision. Furthermore, all such 
public easements and dedications have been designed pursuant to: (a) the requirements of the Policy Plan 
component of The Ontario Plan and applicable area plans; (b) applicable specific plan; (c) applicable 
provisions of the City of Ontario Development Code; (d) applicable master plans and design guidelines of 
the City; and (e) applicable Standard Drawings of the City. 
 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment 1 of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 

Item B - 6 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-003 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 7 

 
SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 

harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 
  

Item B - 7 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-003 
October 16, 2017 

Page 8 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

Item B - 8 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-003 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit B — TENTATIVE TRACT MAP 20012 
 

 

Item B - 9 of 41



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-003 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

 Page 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 1—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item B - 10 of 41



Item B - 11 of 41



Item B - 12 of 41



Item B - 13 of 41



Item B - 14 of 41



Item B - 15 of 41



Item B - 16 of 41



Item B - 17 of 41



Item B - 18 of 41



Item B - 19 of 41



Item B - 20 of 41



Item B - 21 of 41



Item B - 22 of 41



Item B - 23 of 41



Item B - 24 of 41



Item B - 25 of 41



Item B - 26 of 41



Item B - 27 of 41



Item B - 28 of 41



Item B - 29 of 41



Item B - 30 of 41



Item B - 31 of 41



Item B - 32 of 41



Item B - 33 of 41



Item B - 34 of 41



Item B - 35 of 41



Item B - 36 of 41



Item B - 37 of 41



Item B - 38 of 41



Item B - 39 of 41



Item B - 40 of 41



Item B - 41 of 41



 

 Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
October 16, 2017 

 
DECISION NO.: [insert #] 
 
FILE NO.: PMTT16-021 (TPM 19787) 
 
DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Parcel Map (File No. PMTT16-021) to subdivide approximately 76.68 acres of 
land into 4 parcels and 2 letter lots for public road purposes, within the High Density Residential (HDR) 
district of Planning Areas 7 and 8 of the Grand Park Specific Plan, located at the southeast corner of Ontario 
Ranch Road and Archibald Avenue. (APN: 218-241-32); submitted by Loyola Properties 1, LP.   
  
 
 
 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 
 

LOYOLA PROPERTIES 1, LP, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application 
requesting Tentative Tract Map approval, File No. PMTT16-021, as described in the subject of this Decision 
(herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 
 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of approximately 76.68 acres of land located 
along the southeast corner of Ontario Ranch Road and Archibald Avenue, and is depicted in Exhibit A: 
Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan 
land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site Vacant 

Medium Density 
Residential (11.1-25 

du/ac) / Open 
Space-Parkland  

Grand Park Specific 
Plan  

 Planning Areas 7 and 8  

High Density Residential  

North 
Electric Utilities 

Transfer Station & 
Vacant Land 

 Low Density 
Residential (2.1-5 

du/ac) 

The Avenue Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 7 

Low Density Residential  

 

South Vacant 
Low Density 

Residential (2.1-5 
du/ac) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan  

Planning Area 3 

Conventional Medium Lot  

East Vacant Public School/ Open 
Space-Parkland 

Grand Park Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 10 

High School  

West Vacant Neighborhood 
Commercial  Parkside Specific Plan 

Planning Area 21 

Commercial  
 

(2) Project Description: A Tentative Parcel Map request (File No. PMTT16-021 (TPM 19787) 
to subdivide approximately 76.68 acres of land into 4 parcels and 2 letter lots for public road purposes, 
within the High Density Residential (HDR) district of Planning Areas 7 and 8 of the Grand Park Specific 
Plan, located at the southeast corner of Ontario Ranch Road and Archibald Avenue.  The proposed parcel 

Item C - 1 of 22



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-021(TPM19787) 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 2 

sizes exceeds the Specific Plan’s minimum lot requirement of 1-acre (see Exhibit B: Grand Park Specific 
Plan Land Use Map). 
 
The proposed Tentative Parcel Map (referred to as an “A” Map) will facilitate the backbone infrastructure 
improvements (major streets, sewer, water and storm drain facilities). Separate individual tract maps, 
referred to as “B” Maps, for the subdivision of residential neighborhoods and internal street circulation will 
be submitted in the near future. 
 
The Tentative Parcel Map proposes to subdivide approximately 76.68 acres of land into 4 parcels and 2 
letter lots for public road purposes and a reminder parcel for the future portion of the Great Park. The 
subdivision will allow the orderly build-out of the backbone infrastructure and the future “B” Maps for the 
subdivision of residential neighborhoods and internal circulation. The parcels range from 6.03 gross acres 
to 8.41 gross acres. The proposed parcels exceeds the Specific Plan’s minimum parcel size requirement 
of 1-acre. 
 
The proposed two (2) letter lots (Lot A & B) will accommodate the extension of Grand Park Street and “A” 
Street.  Grand Park Street will be extended from Archibald Avenue, along the westerly edge of the project 
site, to the easterly edge of the site. “A” Street will be extended from Ontario Ranch Road, southerly until it 
meets Grand Park Street. All necessary street and utility improvements (water, sewer, storm drain, street 
lighting) will be required to be completed as part of the proposed subdivision. 
 
CC&R’s — As a Condition of Approval, staff will require that CC&R’s be prepared and recorded with the 
final map. The CC&R’s will outline the maintenance responsibilities to ensure the on-going maintenance of 
the common areas and facilities. 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in the 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific Plan ((SCH# 2012061057) that 
was adopted by the City Council on January 21, 2014, and this Application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 

Item C - 2 of 22



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-021(TPM19787) 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 3 

Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 16, 2017, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the Environmental Impact 
Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific Plan (SCH# 2012061057), that was adopted by the City 
Council on January 21, 2014. Based upon the facts and information contained in the Environmental Impact 
Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific Plan (SCH# 2012061057) and supporting 
documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific Plan (SCH# 2012061057) that 
was adopted by the City Council on January 21, 2014; and 
 

(2) The previous Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific 
Plan (SCH# 2012061057) adopted by the City Council on January 21, 2014 contains a complete and 
accurate reporting of the environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific 
Plan (SCH# 2012061057) adopted by the City Council on January 21, 2014 was completed in compliance 
with CEQA and the Guidelines promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; 
and 
 

(4) The Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific Plan (SCH# 
2012061057) adopted by the City Council on January 21, 2014 reflects the independent judgment of the 
Development Advisory Board; and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific Plan 
(SCH# 2012061057) adopted by the City Council on January 21, 2014, and all mitigation measures 
previously adopted with the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific Plan 
(SCH# 2012061057), are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

Item C - 3 of 22



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-021(TPM19787) 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 4 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental addendum to the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 
prepared for The Grand Park Specific Plan (SCH# 2012061057) adopted by the City Council on January 
21, 2014 is not required for the Project, as the Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) 
prepared for The Grand Park Specific Plan (SCH# 2012061057) adopted by the City Council on January 
21, 2014 due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the 
severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 

Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific Plan (SCH# 2012061057), that 
will require major revisions to the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific 
Plan (SCH# 2012061057) due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial 
increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; and 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the Environmental Impact Report 
(EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific Plan (SCH# 2012061057) certified/adopted, that shows any of 
the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the  
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific Plan (SCH# 2012061057) 
adopted by the City Council on January 21, 2014; or 

 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific Plan (SCH# 
2012061057); or 

 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project; or  
 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific Plan (SCH# 2012061057) 
would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but which the City declined 
to adopt. 
 
SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California Government 
Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body for the Project, 
the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing Element of 
the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan.  The project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 

 
 
SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 

Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 

Item C - 4 of 22



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-021(TPM19787) 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 5 

establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed Tentative Tract Map is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and 
exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The 
Ontario Plan, and applicable area and specific plans, and planned unit developments. The proposed 
Tentative Parcel Map is located within the MDR (Medium Density Residential) land use district of the Policy 
Plan Land Use Map, and within Planning Areas 7 & 8 (High Density Residential 18-25 DU/AC) district of 
The Grand Park Specific Plan. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and 
exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario 
Plan, as the project will contribute to providing “a spectrum of housing types and price ranges that match 
the jobs in the City, and that make it possible for people to live and work in Ontario and maintain a quality 
of life” (Goal LU1). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to “incorporate a variety of land 
uses and building types that contribute to a complete community where residents at all stages of life, 
employers, workers, and visitors, have a wide spectrum of choices of where they can live, work, shop, and 
recreate within Ontario” (Policy LU1-6 Complete Community).  In addition, the Tentative Parcel Map meets 
all minimum size requirements and development standards specified within the High Density Residential 
(18-25 DU/AC) land use district of The Grand Park Specific Plan (PA-7 & PA-8), therefore the proposed 
Tentative Parcel Map is consistent with The Ontario Plan and The Grand Park Specific Plan. 
 

(2) The design or improvement of the proposed Tentative Tract Map is consistent with 
the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable specific plans and planned unit 
developments. The proposed Tentative Parcel Map is located within the Medium Density Residential land 
use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and within Planning Areas 7 & 8 (High Density Residential 
18-25 DU/AC) district of The Grand Park Specific Plan. The proposed design or improvement of the 
subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General 
Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to providing 
“[a] high level of design quality resulting in public spaces, streetscapes, and developments that are 
attractive, safe, functional and distinct” (Goal CD2). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy 
to “create distinct residential neighborhoods that are functional, have a sense of community, emphasize 
livability and social interaction, and are uniquely identifiable places through such elements as: 
 

 A pattern of smaller, walkable blocks that promote access, activity and safety; 
 Variable setbacks and parcel sizes to accommodate a diversity of housing types; 
 Traffic calming measures to slow traffic and promote walkability while maintaining 

acceptable fire protection and traffic flows; and 
 Landscaped parkways, with sidewalks separated from the curb.” (Policy CD2-2 

Neighborhood Design). 
 

Item C - 5 of 22



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-021(TPM19787) 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 6 

In addition, the Tentative Parcel Map meets all minimum size requirements and development standards 
specified within the Planning Areas 7 & 8 (High Density Residential 18-25 DU/AC) districts of The Grand 
Park Specific Plan, therefore the proposed Tentative Parcel Map is consistent with The Ontario Plan and 
The Grand Park Specific Plan. 
 

(3) The site is physically suitable for the type of development proposed. The Tentative 
Parcel Map proposes to subdivide approximately 76.68 acres of land into 4 parcels and 2 letter lots for 
public road purposes within (Planning Areas 7 & 8) of The Grand Park Specific Plan. The proposed parcels 
range in size from 6.03 acres to 8.41 acres. The parcels proposed exceeds the Specific Plan’s minimum 
parcel requirement of 1-acre. The Specific Plan provides for the development of up to 587 residential units 
and a density of 18 (PA-7) and 19.3 (PA-8) dwelling units per acre.  
 

(4) The site is physically suitable for the density/intensity of development proposed. 
The project site is proposed for residential development at a density of 18 (PA-7) and 19.3 (PA-8) DUs/acre. 
The Specific Plan provides for the development of up to 587 residential units. The Tentative Parcel Map 
proposes to subdivide approximately 76.68 acres of land into 4 parcels and 2 letter lots for public road 
purposes. The proposed lots range in size from 6.03 acres to 8.41 acres. The parcels proposed exceeds 
the Specific Plan’s minimum parcel requirement of 1-acre. The project site meets the minimum parcel area 
and dimensions within Planning Areas 7 & 8, and is physically suitable for the proposed density/intensity of 
development.  
 

(5) The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or 
their habitat. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific Plan (SCH# 2012061057). This 
application is consistent with the previously adopted EIR and introduces no new significant environmental 
impacts. 
 

(6) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, are not likely to 
cause serious public health problems. The design of the proposed subdivision, and the residential and 
infrastructure improvements proposed on the project site, are not likely to cause serious public health 
problems, as the project is not anticipated to involve the transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials 
during either construction or project implementation, include the use of hazardous materials or volatile fuels, 
nor are there any known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within close proximity to the subject 
site that use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a significant hazard to visitors or 
occupants to the project site. In addition, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed 
in conjunction with the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) prepared for The Grand Park Specific Plan 
(SCH# 2012061057). This application is consistent with the previously adopted EIR and introduces no new 
significant environmental impacts. 
 

(7) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, will not conflict 
with easements acquired by the public at large for access through, or use of property within, the 
proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision has provided for all necessary public easements and 
dedications for access through, or use of property within, the proposed subdivision. Furthermore, all such 
public easements and dedications have been designed pursuant to: (a) the requirements of the Policy Plan 
component of The Ontario Plan and applicable area plans; (b) applicable specific plan; (c) applicable 
provisions of the City of Ontario Development Code; (d) applicable master plans and design guidelines of 
the City; and (e) applicable Standard Drawings of the City. 
 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment 1 of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

Item C - 6 of 22



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-021(TPM19787) 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 7 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item C - 7 of 22



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-021 (TPM 19787) 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

 Page 8 

Exhibit A—Project Aerial Photograph 
 
 
 
  

Site  
 

Item C - 8 of 22



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-021(TPM19787) 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 9 

 
 

Exhibit B—GRAND PARK SPECIFIC PLAN LAND USE MAP 
 
 

 
  

Site  
(PA 8 & PA 7) 

Item C - 9 of 22



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-021(TPM19787) 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit C- TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 19787 
 

 
 
 

Site 

Item C - 10 of 22



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT16-021 (TPM 19787) 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

 Page 11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 1—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item C - 11 of 22



Item C - 12 of 22



Item C - 13 of 22



Item C - 14 of 22



Item C - 15 of 22



Item C - 16 of 22



Item C - 17 of 22



Item C - 18 of 22



Item C - 19 of 22



Item C - 20 of 22



Item C - 21 of 22



Item C - 22 of 22



 

 Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
October 16, 2017 

 
DECISION NO.: [insert #] 
 
FILE NO.: PMTT17-002 
 
DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT17-002/TT 18937) to subdivide 23.66 acres 
of land into: 1) 48 single-family numbered lots (6-Pack Cluster); 2) 7 multi-family numbered lots for 
Condominium Purposes (Lots 49 thru 55); and 3) 41 lettered lots for public streets, landscape neighborhood 
edges and common open space purposes, for property located at the northeast corner of Archibald Avenue 
and Ontario Ranch Road, within the Low Medium Density Residential (LMDR) district of Planning Area 7 
of The Avenue Specific Plan.  (APN: 0218-201-18); submitted by Brookcal Ontario, LLC. 
 
 
 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 
 

BROOKCAL ONTARIO, LLC, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application 
requesting Tentative Tract Map approval, File No. PMTT17-002, as described in the subject of this Decision 
(herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 
 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 23.66 acres of land located at northeast 
corner of Archibald Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road, and is depicted in Exhibit B: Project Location Map, 
attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and 
surrounding the project site are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site Vacant Low Density 
Residential  

The Avenue Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 7 – 
(LMDR) 

North Vacant Low Density 
Residential 

The Avenue Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 6A – 
(LDR) 

South Agriculture/Dairy Medium Density 
Residential 

Grand Park Specific 
Plan 

Planning Areas 7 and 
8 – (HDR) 

East Agriculture/Dairy Low Density 
Residential 

The Avenue Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 8A – 
(LDR) 

West Agriculture Low Density 
Residential 

The Avenue Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 5 – 
(LDR, OS and Elem. 

School) 
 

(2) Project Description: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT17-002/TT 18937) to subdivide 
23.66 acres of land into: 1) 48 single-family numbered lots (6-Pack Cluster); 2) 7 multi-family numbered lots 
for Condominium Purposes (Lots 49 thru 55); and 3) 41 lettered lots for public streets, landscape 
neighborhood edges and common open space purposes, for property located at the northeast corner of 
Archibald Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road.  The proposed project will provide additional single-family 
detached cluster home and multi-family attached condominium products within Planning Area 7 of The 
Avenue Specific Plan (See Exhibit A: Tentative Tract Map 18937). The residential lots range in size from 
2,854 to 3,361 square feet for the single-family cluster lots and from 30,820 to 91,237 square feet for the 

Item D - 1 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT17-002 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 2 

multi-family attached condominium lots. The proposed lots exceed the Specific Plan’s minimum lot 
requirement of 2,000 square feet (SFD 4/6 Cluster) and 14,000 square feet (Autocourt). 
 
The previously approved related Tentative Tract Map 18922 (“A” Map), facilitated the construction of the 
backbone streets and primary access points into the existing New Haven Community (Planning Area 10A) 
of The Avenue Specific Plan from Ontario Ranch Road, Turner Avenue, Schaefer Avenue and Haven 
Avenue. The project site will have access from Archibald Avenue and La Avenida Drive, which runs east 
and west along the northern frontage of the site and has direct access to Archibald Avenue. The Tentative 
Tract Map will also construct the interior tract streets and private lanes that will provide access to the future 
residential development.   
 
The Tentative Tract Map will facilitate the construction of a neighborhood park, sidewalks, parkways, and 
open space areas within the tract. TOP Policy PR1-1 requires new developments to provide a minimum of 
2 acres of private park per 1,000 residents.  The proposed project is required to provide a 1.83 acre park 
to meet the minimum TOP private park requirement. To satisfy the park requirement, the applicant is 
constructing a 1.98 acre neighborhood park that is centrally located within the tract. In addition, a 6.8 acre 
park, as part of the related “A” Map (TT18922), was constructed at the center of Planning Area 10A located 
east of the project site. The park features an 8,348 square foot club house, two pools and a spa, open lawn 
area and other recreational amenities. The residents of the development will have access to the existing 
park and all park amenities. 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 

 
WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 

File No. PSPA13-003, a(n) amendment to The Avenue Specific Plan for which a(n) addendum to The 
Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) was adopted by the City Council on June 17, 2014, and 
this Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 

Item D - 2 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT17-002 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 3 

Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; 
 

WHEREAS, on October 16, 2017, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous addendum to The 
Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) and supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and 
information contained in the previous addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) 
and supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with File 
No. PSPA13-003, a(n) amendment to The Avenue Specific Plan for which a(n) addendum to The Avenue 
Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) was adopted by the City Council on June 17, 2014 
 

(2) The previous addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) contains a 
complete and accurate reporting of the environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) was 
completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario 
Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

(4) The previous addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) reflects 
the independent judgment of the Planning Commission; and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the previous addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109), and 
all mitigation measures previously adopted with the addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 
2005071109), are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 
2005071109) is not required for the Project, as the Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR 
(SCH# 2005071109) that will require major revisions to the addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR 
(SCH# 2005071109) due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial 
increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 

Item D - 3 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT17-002 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 4 

(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 
addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) was prepared, that will require major 
revisions to the addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) due to the involvement 
of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified 
significant effects; and 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the addendum to The Avenue 
Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) was certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the addendum 
to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109); or 

 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109); or 
 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109) would substantially reduce one or 
more significant effects on the environment, but which the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one of the 
properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) 
of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the proposed project is consistent with the number 
of dwelling units (265) and density (9.3 DU/AC) specified in the Available Land Inventory. 

 
SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 

Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 

Item D - 4 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT17-002 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 5 

(1) The proposed Tentative Tract Map is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and 
exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The 
Ontario Plan, and applicable area and specific plans, and planned unit developments. The proposed 
Tentative Tract Map is located within the Low Density Residential land use district of the Policy Plan Land 
Use Map, and within Planning Area 7 (LMDR) district of The Avenue Specific Plan. The proposed 
subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General 
Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to providing 
“a spectrum of housing types and price ranges that match the jobs in the City, and that make it possible for 
people to live and work in Ontario and maintain a quality of life” (Goal LU1). Furthermore, the project will 
promote the City’s policy to “incorporate a variety of land uses and building types that contribute to a 
complete community where residents at all stages of life, employers, workers, and visitors, have a wide 
spectrum of choices of where they can live, work, shop, and recreate within Ontario” (Policy LU1-6 
Complete Community).  In addition, the Tentative Tract Map meets all minimum size requirements and 
development standards specified within the Low Medium Density Residential (Planning Area 7 – Product 
Types: 3, 6 and 7) land use district of The Avenue Specific Plan, therefore the proposed Tentative Tract 
Map is consistent with The Ontario Plan and The Avenue Specific Plan. 
 

(2) The design or improvement of the proposed Tentative Tract Map is consistent with 
the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable specific plans and planned unit 
developments. The proposed Tentative Tract Map is located within the Low Density Residential land use 
district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and within Planning Area 7 (LMDR) district of The Avenue Specific 
Plan. The proposed design or improvement of the subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, 
and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario 
Plan, as the project will contribute to providing “[a] high level of design quality resulting in public spaces, 
streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct” (Goal CD2). Furthermore, 
the project will promote the City’s policy to “create distinct residential neighborhoods that are functional, 
have a sense of community, emphasize livability and social interaction, and are uniquely identifiable places 
through such elements as: 
 

 A pattern of smaller, walkable blocks that promote access, activity and safety; 
 Variable setbacks and parcel sizes to accommodate a diversity of housing types; 
 Traffic calming measures to slow traffic and promote walkability while maintaining 

acceptable fire protection and traffic flows; 
 Floor plans that encourage views onto the street and de-emphasize the visual and 

physical dominance of garages (introducing the front porch as the “outdoor living room”), as appropriate; 
and 

 Landscaped parkways, with sidewalks separated from the curb.” (Policy CD2-2 
Neighborhood Design). 
 
In addition, the Tentative Tract Map meets all minimum size requirements and development standards 
specified within the Low Medium Density Residential (Planning Area 7 – Product Types: 3, 6 and 7) land 
use district of The Avenue Specific Plan, therefore the proposed Tentative Tract Map is consistent with The 
Ontario Plan and The Avenue Specific Plan. 
 

(3) The site is physically suitable for the type of development proposed. The Tentative 
Tract Map to subdivide 23.66 acres of land into: 1) 48 single-family numbered lots (6-Pack Cluster); 2) 7 
multi-family numbered lots for Condominium Purposes (Lots 49 thru 55); and 3) 41 lettered lots for public 
streets, landscape neighborhood edges and common open space purposes, for property located at the 
northeast corner of Archibald Avenue and Ontario Ranch Road. The proposed project will provide additional 
single-family detached cluster home and multi-family attached condominium products within Planning Area 
7 of The Avenue Specific Plan. The residential lots range in size from 2,854 to 3,361 square feet for the 
single-family cluster lots and from 30,820 to 91,237 square feet for the multi-family attached condominium 
lots. The proposed lots exceed the Specific Plan’s minimum lot requirement of 2,000 square feet (SFD 4/6 

Item D - 5 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT17-002 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 6 

Cluster) and 14,000 square feet (Autocourt). The Specific Plan provides for the development of up to 287 
residential dwelling units and a density of 9.5 dwelling units per acre within Planning Area 7.  The Tentative 
Tract Map proposes 265 dwelling units at a density of 9.3 dwelling units per acre.  The project site meets 
the minimum lot area and dimensions of the Low Medium Density Residential (Planning Area 7 – Product 
Types: 3, 6 and 7) land use district of The Avenue Specific Plan, and is physically suitable for the type of 
residential development proposed in terms of zoning, land use and development activity proposed, and 
existing and proposed site conditions. 
 

(4) The site is physically suitable for the density/intensity of development proposed. 
The project site is proposed for residential development at a density of 9.3 DUs/acre. The Specific Plan 
provides for the development of up to 287 residential dwelling units and a density of 9.5 dwelling units per 
acre within Planning Area 7.  The Tentative Tract Map proposes 265 dwelling units at a density of 9.3 
dwelling units per acre. The Tentative Tract Map proposes to subdivide 23.66 acres of land into: 1) 48 
single-family numbered lots (6-Pack Cluster) and 2) 7 multi-family numbered lots for Condominium 
Purposes (Lots 49 thru 55) for the construction of 48 single-family residential and 217 multi-family 
residential units within (Planning Area 7) of The Avenue Specific Plan. The residential lots range in size 
from 2,854 to 3,361 square feet for the single-family cluster lots and from 30,820 to 91,237 square feet for 
the multi-family attached condominium lots. The proposed lots exceed the Specific Plan’s minimum lot 
requirement of 2,000 square feet (SFD 4/6 Cluster) and 14,000 square feet (Autocourt) and is physically 
suitable for this proposed density/intensity of development.  
 

(5) The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or 
their habitat. The project site is not located in an area that has been identified as containing species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or 
regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, nor 
does the site contain any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community, and no wetland habitat is 
present on site; therefore, the design of the subdivision, or improvements proposed thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or their 
habitat.  In addition, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
an addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109). This application is consistent with the 
previously adopted EIR and introduces no new significant environmental impacts. 
 

(6) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, are not likely to 
cause serious public health problems. The design of the proposed subdivision, and the residential and 
infrastructure improvements proposed on the project site, are not likely to cause serious public health 
problems, as the project is not anticipated to involve the transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials 
during either construction or project implementation, include the use of hazardous materials or volatile fuels, 
nor are there any known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within close proximity to the subject 
site that use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a significant hazard to visitors or 
occupants to the project site.  In addition, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed 
in conjunction with the addendum to The Avenue Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2005071109).  This application 
is consistent with the previously adopted EIR and introduces no new significant environmental impacts. 
 

(7) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, will not conflict 
with easements acquired by the public at large for access through, or use of property within, the 
proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision has provided for all necessary public easements and 
dedications for access through, or use of property within, the proposed subdivision. Furthermore, all such 
public easements and dedications have been designed pursuant to: (a) the requirements of the Policy Plan 
component of The Ontario Plan and applicable area plans; (b) applicable specific plan; (c) applicable 
provisions of the City of Ontario Development Code; (d) applicable master plans and design guidelines of 
the City; and (e) applicable Standard Drawings of the City. 
 

Item D - 6 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT17-002 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 7 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment 1 of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 
  

Item D - 7 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT17-002 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit A —Tentative Tract Map 18937 
 

Ontario Ranch Rd 

A
rc

hi
ba

ld
 A

ve
 

La Avenida Dr 

Item D - 8 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT17-002 
October 16, 2017 

 Page 9 

Exhibit B—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

Item D - 9 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT17-002 
October 16, 2017 

Page 10 

Exhibit C — SITE PLAN 

Ontario Ranch Rd

A
rc

hi
ba

ld
 A

ve
 

La Avenida Dr 

Item D - 10 of 37



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT17-002 
October 16, 2017 

Page 11 

Attachment 1—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item D - 11 of 37



Item D - 12 of 37



Item D - 13 of 37



Item D - 14 of 37



Item D - 15 of 37



Item D - 16 of 37



Item D - 17 of 37



Item D - 18 of 37



Item D - 19 of 37



Item D - 20 of 37



Item D - 21 of 37



Item D - 22 of 37



Item D - 23 of 37



Item D - 24 of 37



Item D - 25 of 37



Item D - 26 of 37



Item D - 27 of 37



Item D - 28 of 37



Item D - 29 of 37



Item D - 30 of 37



Item D - 31 of 37



Item D - 32 of 37



Item D - 33 of 37



Item D - 34 of 37



Item D - 35 of 37



Item D - 36 of 37



Item D - 37 of 37



 

 Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
October 16, 2017 

 
DECISION NO.: [insert #] 
 
FILE NO.: PDEV17-035 
 
DESCRIPTION:  A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-035) to construct 97 single-family homes on 
approximately 13.53 acres of land located at the southeast corner of Parkview Street and Parkplace 
Avenue, within the Conventional Small Lot Residential District of Planning Areas 16 and 17 of the Subarea 
29 Specific Plan. APNs: 0218-022-01 & 0218-022-03; submitted by Woodside Homes.   
 
 
 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 
 

WOODSIDE HOMES, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting 
Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV17-035, as described in the subject of this Decision (herein after 
referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 
 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of approximately 13.53 acres of land located 
at the southeast corner of Parkview Street and Parkplace Avenue, within the Conventional Small Lot 
Residential District of Planning Areas 16 and 17 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, and is depicted in Exhibit 
A: Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific 
plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation 

Zoning 
Designation 

Specific Plan 
Land Use 

Site Vacant  Low Density 
Residential 

Subarea 29 
Specific Plan 

Planning Areas 16 & 17 
Conventional Small Lot   

North Vacant  Low Density 
Residential 

Subarea 29 
Specific Plan 

Planning Areas 19  
Lane Loaded  

South Club House for 
Subarea 29/Park  

Low Density 
Residential 

Subarea 29 
Specific Plan 

Planning Areas 9, 11 & 15 
Land Loaded, Neighborhood 

Park & Recreation Center  

East Vacant  Low Density 
Residential 

Subarea 29 
Specific Plan 

Planning Areas 14 & 18 
Neighborhood Park & School  

West 
Single Family Homes Low Density 

Residential 
Subarea 29 

Specific Plan 
Planning Areas 4 & 5 

Conventional Medium and Small 
Lot  

 
(2) Project Description:  On July 28, 2015, Tentative Tract Maps 18978 (File No. PMTT14-006) 

and 18977 (File No. PMTT14-007) to subdivide the project area (13.53 acres) into 97 single-family lots and 
6 letter lots was approved by the Planning Commission. 
 
The applicant is requesting approval of a Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-035) to construct 97 single-
family homes on approximately 13.53 acres of land, located at the southeast corner of Parkview Street and 
Parkplace Avenue, within the Conventional Small Lot Residential District of Planning Areas 16 and 17 of 
the Subarea 29 Specific Plan (see Exhibit B-Specific Plan Land Use Map). 
 

Item E - 1 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-035 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 2 

The proposed project includes three floor plans and three architectural styles per plan. The architectural 
styles proposed are Andalusian, Spanish and Cottage. The three floor plans will include the following: 

 
• Plan 1:  2,277 square feet, 4 bedrooms (option office/loft or kitchenette) and 2.5 baths. 

 
• Plan 2:  2,396 square feet, 4 bedrooms (option loft/office/5 bedroom) and 2.5 baths. 

 
• Plan 3:  2,441 square feet, 3 bedrooms (option loft/office/4th & 5th bedroom) and 2.5 baths. 

 
The propose Development Plan has been designed with the architectural influences already found in the 
Ontario Ranch area and throughout Southern California. All plans incorporate various design features, such 
as second-story massing, varied entries, front porches, great rooms, 2nd floor laundry facilities, lofts/office 
options and outdoor California rooms. In addition, each home will provide a two-car garage and standard 
driveways. To minimize the visual impacts of the garage units, second story projections above garage units, 
varied first and second-story roof massing and door header trim above the garage are proposed on most 
of the elevations (See Figures 1, 2, 3 & 4–Typical Plotting Plan & Elevations). 
 

 
 

Figure 1: Typical Plotting Plan  
 
 

[1] Site Access/Circulation- The previously approved Tentative Tract Map 18913 (“A” Map), facilitated 
the construction of the backbone streets including the primary access points into the central portion of the 
Subarea 29 (Park Place) community from Archibald Avenue and Merrill Avenue. The Applicant will be 
responsible to construct all improvements associated with Tentative Tract Map 18977 and 18977 (“B” Map), 
which includes the construction of all the interior neighborhood streets within the subdivision. Primary 
access into the subdivision will be from Merrill Avenue, Parkplace Avenue and Parkview Street.   
 
Parking- –The proposed development will comply with the parking requirements of the Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan. Each plan provides a 2-car garage in addition to 2-driveway spaces.  Parking requirements are 
consistent with the parking requirements of the Development Code and the Subarea 29 Specific Plan (see 
Table 1: Summary of Parking). 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item E - 2 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-035 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 3 

 
 

Parking Analysis 
Product Number of 

Units 
Garages Driveways 

Parking 
Total Parking 

Required 
Total Parking 

Provided 
Conventional 

Small Lot 
97 2 spaces per 

unit 
2 spaces per 

unit 
194 388 

 
 
Landscaping- All the single-family homes will be provided with front yard landscaping (lawn, shrubs and 
trees) and an automatic irrigation system to be installed by the developer. The homeowner will be 
responsible for side and rear yard landscape improvements.  
 
In addition, the proposed development will provide a total of .58-acres of open space in the form of two 
private parks (Lot E & Lot F). Policy Plan (General Plan) Policy PR1-1 requires new developments to 
provide a minimum of 2 acres of private park land per 1,000 residents. However, to satisfy the private park 
requirements of the Policy Plan, the applicant was required by the approved Development Agreement (File 
No. PDA06-001) to construct a total of 8 acres of private parks within the Park Place community (Phases 
1, 2 & 3).  Through the various tentative tract map approvals within Phases 1, 2 and 3 of the Park Place 
community, the applicant has provided a total of 8.16 acres of private parks, which satisfy the Policy Plan 
private park requirements.   
 
The project will also provide 12-foot parkways that will feature sidewalks separated by landscaped 
parkways, which will provide visual interest and will promote pedestrian mobility. Additionally, the project 
will provide a paseo connection to a multi-purpose trail located within the neighborhood edges of Merrill 
Avenue (southerly portion of the site).  
 
Architecture- The architectural philosophy of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan is designed upon the 
architectural influences already found in the Ontario Ranch Area and throughout Southern California. The 
architectural styles have been selected in order to complement already existing residential communities 
within the Ontario Ranch Area. The proposed architectural styles include Andalusian, Spanish, and 
Cottage. The styles were chosen to complement one another through the overall scale, massing, 
proportions, architectural details and the ability to establish an attractive backdrop that will age gracefully 
over time. Each proposed architecture style will have 3-different floor plans and each plan will also have its 
own exterior colors & materials schedule, to add more interest and variety to the product. Each architectural 
style will include the following details (See Figures 2, 3 & 4– Elevations): 
 

Spanish: Varying low-pitched gable roofs, with “S” concrete roof tile with one intersecting gable at 
the front; stucco exterior; square windows openings with trim and wood shutters; tile accent around 
front door entry and key front windows; arched porch and entryways; decorative barrel tiles below 
gable ends; and wrought-iron pot shelves. 

 

Table 1: Summary of Parking 

Item E - 3 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-035 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 4 

 
 
Andalusian: Low-pitched hipped “S” tile roof; stucco finish exterior; windows with trim and 
decorative wood shutters; stone veneer accents on front elevations; decorative stone veneer pot 
shelf below 1st story key windows; wood trim header above garage door; shed tile roof above 
garage doors and above front entry opening.  

 
 

 
 

Cottage: High and low-pitched concrete tile roof with single gable design with a moderate overhang 
and intersecting gables at the front; horizontal siding and with square dentils accents below gables; 
stucco exterior finish; square windows with stucco trim and decorative shutters at key windows; 
covered front entry with decorative wood post; arched garage entry; and shed tile roof above 
garage doors.  

 

 
Figure 2: Spanish Architecture 

 

Figure 3: Andalusian Architecture 
 

Item E - 4 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-035 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 5 

 
 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
an addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) that was adopted by the City 
Council on April 21, 2015, and this Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 

 

Figure 4: Cottage Architecture 

Item E - 5 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-035 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 6 

subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 16, 2017, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous addendum to the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) that was adopted by the City Council on April 21, 2015 
and supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous addendum 
to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) and supporting documentation, the DAB finds as 
follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the 
addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) that was adopted by the City Council 
on April 21, 2015; and 
 

(2) The previous addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009)  
contains a complete and accurate reporting of the environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) was 
completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario 
Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

(4) The previous addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009)  reflects 
the independent judgment of the Development Advisory Board; and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the previous addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009), 
and all mitigation measures previously adopted, are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent addendum/EIR (SCH# 2004011009) is not required for the Project, as 
the Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the previously prepared addendum to the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) that was prepared for the project,  that will require  
revisions to the Addendum due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial 
increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 

Item E - 6 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-035 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 7 

(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 
addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009),  that was prepared, that will require 
revisions to the Addendum  due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial 
increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; and. 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the addendum to the Subarea 
29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009),  was certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the addendum 
to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009); or 

 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009); or 
 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009), would substantially reduce one 
or more significant effects on the environment, but which the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one of the 
properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) 
of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the proposed project is consistent with the number 
of dwelling units (97) and density (7 dwelling units per acre) specified in the Available Land Inventory. 
 

APNs: 218-022-01 & 02 

Parcel Size: 13.5 Acres 

 Available Land Inventory Proposed Project 

Number of Units: 97 97 

Assumed Density: 5 7 
 

SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 

Item E - 7 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-035 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 8 

Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the Low Density Residential 
land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the Conventional Small Lot Residential District of 
Planning Areas 16 & 17 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The development standards and conditions under 
which the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, 
and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario 
Plan; and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the Conventional 
Small Lot Residential District of Planning Areas 16 & 17 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan zoning district, 
including standards relative to the particular land use proposed (development of 97 single-family homes), 
as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, number of off-street parking 
and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions. The Project has 
been designed consistent with the requirements of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan (Conventional Small Lot) 
land use designations, including standards relative to the particular land use, as well as building intensity, 
building and parking setbacks, building height, number of off-street parking spaces, on-site and off-site 
landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Conventional Small Lot Residential 
District of Planning Areas 16 & 17 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan are maintained; [ii] the project will not 
endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in any significant 
environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which it is located; and [v] the 
project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components of The 
Ontario Plan, and the Conventional Small Lot Residential District of Planning Areas 16 & 17 of the Subarea 
29 Specific Plan; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Conventional Small Lot Residential District of Planning Areas 16 & 17 of 
the Subarea 29 Specific Plan that are applicable to the proposed Project, including building intensity, 
building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading spaces, parking lot 
dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and fences and walls, as-well-
as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the particular land use being 
proposed (development of 97 single-family homes). As a result of this review, the Development Advisory 
Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, 

Item E - 8 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-035 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 9 

will be consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in the Conventional Small Lot 
Residential District of Planning Areas 16 & 17 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. 
 
Action. Based on the findings and conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby 
recommend the Planning Commission APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set 
forth in the Department reports included as Attachment 1 of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 
 

 
- - - - - - - - - - - - 

 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item E - 9 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-035 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

 Page 10 

Exhibit A—SITE AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  

SITE 

Item E - 10 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-035 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 11 

 
Exhibit B—SPECIFIC PLAN LAND USE MAP 

 
 
 
  Project Site 

Item E - 11 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-035 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 12 

 
  

 

Exhibit C—SITE PLAN 
 

M
E
R
R
I
L
L 
 
A
V
E
N
U
E 

P
A
R
K
V
I
E
W 
 
S
T
R
E
E
T 

Item E - 12 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-035 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 13 

 

 

Exhibit D—SITE PLAN-PORTION 
 

Item E - 13 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-035 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 14 

 
 
 

Exhibit E—SITE PLAN-PORTION 
 

Item E - 14 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-035 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 15 

 

Exhibit F—SITE PLAN-PORTION 

Item E - 15 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-035 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 16 

 
 

 
Exhibit: G: Elevations 

Item E - 16 of 31



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-035 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

 Page 17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 1—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item E - 17 of 31



Item E - 18 of 31



Item E - 19 of 31



Item E - 20 of 31



Item E - 21 of 31



Item E - 22 of 31



Item E - 23 of 31



Item E - 24 of 31



Item E - 25 of 31



Item E - 26 of 31



Item E - 27 of 31



Item E - 28 of 31



Item E - 29 of 31



Item E - 30 of 31



Item E - 31 of 31



 Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
October 16, 2017 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PDEV17-030 

DESCRIPTION: Development Plan approval to construct 102 single-family dwellings on 8.76 acres 
of land located at the southeast corner of Parkview Street and Celebration Avenue, within the Cluster 
Homes Residential district of Planning Area 25 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. (APN(s): 0218-033-02, 
0218-033-04); submitted by Taylor Morrison of California, LLC. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

TAYLOR MORRISON OF CALIFORNIA, LLC, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an 
application requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV17-030, as described in the subject of 
this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 8.76 acres of land located at the southeast
corner of Parkview Street and Celebration Avenue, and is depicted in Exhibit A: Project Location Map, 
attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and 
surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site Vacant with Previous 
Agricultural/Dairy Uses 

LDR (Low Density 
Residential, 2.1-5 

du/ac) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 25 
(Cluster Homes) 

North Vacant with Previous 
Agricultural/Dairy Uses 

LDR (Low Density 
Residential, 2.1-5 

du/ac) Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 23 
(Conventional Small 

Lot), Planning Area 30 
(Conventional Large 

Lot) 

South Vacant with Previous 
Agricultural/Dairy Uses 

LDR (Low Density 
Residential, 2.1-5 

du/ac) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 26 
(Cluster Homes) 

East SCE Transmission 
Lines 

OS-NR (Open Space – 
Non Recreation) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan SCE Corridor 

West Vacant with Previous 
Agricultural/Dairy Uses 

LDR (Low Density 
Residential, 2.1-5 

du/ac) 

Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan 

Planning Area 24 
(Conventional Small 

Lot) 

(2) Project Description: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-030) approval to construct
102 single-family residential dwellings on 8.76 acres of land located within the Cluster Homes Residential 
district of Planning Area 25 of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, located at the southeast corner of Parkview 
Street and Celebration Avenue (See Exhibit B – Site Plan). 

Item F - 1 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 

Page 2 

The project proposes the development of 102 single-family homes within a cluster-style development. The 
project includes four floor plans and three architectural styles. The four floor plans include the following: 

• Plan 1: 1,802 square feet, 3 bedrooms, den, 2.5 baths (option for 4th bedroom and 3rd bath).
• Plan 2: 1,988 square feet, 3 bedrooms, den, 3 baths, tech alcove (option for 4th bedroom).
• Plan 3: 2,102 square feet, 4 bedrooms, loft, 3 baths.
• Plan 4: 2,234 square feet, 4 bedrooms, loft, 3 baths (option for 5th bedroom).

The proposed Development Plan has been designed to create architecture that reflects quality in design, 
simplicity in form, and contributes charm and appeal to the neighborhoods within the Subarea 29 Specific 
Plan as a whole. All plans incorporate various design features, such as single- and second-story massing, 
varied entries, front porches, 2nd-floor laundry facilities, a great room, and a loft or bonus room. In addition, 
each home will provide a two-car garage. To minimize visual impacts of garages, all garages face inward 
to a drive court, rather than toward the street. Further, the elevations provide varied first- and second-story 
roof massing and door header trim above the garage (See Figure 1: Typical Plotting). 

Figure 1: Typical Plotting 

Site Access/Circulation — The previously-approved related tentative Tract Map 18913 (“A” Map) and 18074 
(“B” Map) facilitated the construction of the backbone streets, including the primary access points into the 
central portion of the Subarea 29 (Park Place) community from Archibald Avenue and Merrill Avenue, as 
well as the construction of all the interior neighborhood streets within the subdivision. Primary access into 
the subdivision will be from Parkview Street and Perennial Drive. 

Parking – The proposed single-family cluster homes will provide a two-car garage, which meets the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan and Development Code requirements. Further, 114 on-street parking spaces will 
be provided for visitors. 

Open Space – The related Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT14-018/TT18074) will facilitate the 
construction of sidewalks, parkways, and open space areas within the project site. TOP Policy PR1-1 

Item F - 2 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 3 

requires new developments to provide a minimum of 2 acres of private park per 1,000 residents. The 
proposed project is required to provide a 0.78-acre park to meet the minimum TOP private park 
requirement. 
 
To satisfy the park requirement, the applicant is proposing a 0.61-acre neighborhood park that is located 
within the southerly portion of the project site. To satisfy the private park requirements of the Policy Plan, 
the master developer (SL Ontario Development Company, LLC) was required by the Development 
Agreement (PDA06-001) to construct a total of 8 acres of private parks within the Park Place community 
(Phases 1, 2 & 3).  Through the various tentative tract map approvals within Phases 1, 2 and 3 of the Park 
Place community, the applicant has provided 8.16 acres of private parks, which satisfies the Policy Plan 
private park requirements. Additionally, the applicant has constructed a 2.78-acre private recreation facility, 
consisting of a 16,000 square foot clubhouse.  The recreation facility is located at the northeast corner of 
Parkplace Avenue and Merrill Avenue and features a clubhouse, pool and cabana, tennis courts and 
playground area.  The residents of the subdivision will also have access to Celebration Park.  
 
Architecture – The architectural philosophy within the Subarea 29 Specific Plan is based on architectural 
styles found in Ontario’s historic neighborhoods. The inspiration and design intent is to re-capture the charm 
and essence of the historic home styles in in Ontario and express them in the simple, honest manner that 
they originated.  The proposed architectural styles include Andalusian, Farmhouse, and Cottage. The styles 
were chosen to complement one another through the overall scale, massing, proportions, details and the 
ability to establish an attractive backdrop that will age gracefully over time. 
 
Each architectural style will include some of the following details (See Exhibit C – Floor Plan and 
Elevations): 
 
 Andalusian: Varying gable roofs with “S” roof tiles, stucco exterior, arched covered entryways with 

decorative tile, square window openings, wrought-iron pot shelves, decorative wrought-iron 
elements, shutters, cantilevered elements with corbels, faux chimneys, and pot shelves with 
decorative tile bands. 

 

 
 

Plan 3: Andalusian 

Item F - 3 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 4 

 Farmhouse: Varying gable and shed roofs with flat concrete roof tiles, decorative vents and 
outlookers under gable ends, stucco and vertical board and batten siding, covered porches with 
decorative post braces and railings, square window openings, decorative window framing, shutters, 
and pot shelves. 

 

 
 

Plan 2: Farmhouse 
 
 Cottage: Varying gable roofs with flat concrete roof tiles, decorative outlookers below gable ends, 

stucco exterior, arched entryways with stone veneer, square window openings, shutters, and pot 
shelves. 

 

 
 

Plan 3: Cottage 

Item F - 4 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 5 

 
Part II—RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 

Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
File No. PSPA14-002, a(n) Amendment to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan for which a(n) addendum to the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) was adopted by the City Council on April 21, 2015, and 
this Application introduces no new significant environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 

 
WHEREAS, to facilitate the construction of the proposed Development Plan, the Planning 

Commission of the City of Ontario approved a Tentative Tract Map (PMTT14-018/TT18074) on May 26, 
2015, that subdivided the 11.97-gross-acre (8.76-net-acre) project site into 102 single-family lots and 2 
lettered lots and facilitated the construction of the backbone infrastructure and internal street circulation 
within the subdivision; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 16, 2017, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 

Item F - 5 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 6 

 
Part III—THE DECISION 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 

Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous addendum to the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) and supporting documentation. Based upon the facts 
and information contained in the previous addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 
2004011009) and supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with File 
No. PSPA14-002, a(n) Amendment to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan for which a(n) addendum to the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) was adopted by the City Council on April 21, 2015. 
 

(2) The previous addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) 
contains a complete and accurate reporting of the environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) was 
completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario 
Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

(4) The previous addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) reflects 
the independent judgment of the Planning Commission; and 
 

The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the previous addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009), 
and all mitigation measures previously adopted with the addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR 
(SCH# 2004011009), are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR 
(SCH# 2004011009) is not required for the Project, as the Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan 
EIR (SCH# 2004011009) that will require major revisions to the addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan 
EIR (SCH# 2004011009) due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial 
increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 

addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) was prepared, that will require major 
revisions to the addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) due to the involvement 
of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified 
significant effects; and 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the addendum to the Subarea 
29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) was certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the addendum 
to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009); or 

 

Item F - 6 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 7 

(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 
shown in the addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009); or 

 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the addendum to the Subarea 29 Specific Plan EIR (SCH# 2004011009) would substantially reduce one or 
more significant effects on the environment, but which the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one of the 
properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) 
of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the proposed project is consistent with the number 
of dwelling units (102) and density (8.52 DU/AC gross, 11.6 DU/AC net) specified in the Available Land 
Inventory. 

 
SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 

Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the LDR (Low Density 
Residential, 2.1-5 du/ac) land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the Cluster Homes 
(Planning Area 25) of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. The development standards and conditions under 
which the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, 
and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario 
Plan. The Development Plan has been required to comply with all provisions of Cluster Homes Product 
Residential Development Standards of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. Future neighborhoods within the 
Subarea 29 Specific Plan and surrounding area will provide for diverse housing and highly-amenitized 
neighborhoods that will be compatible in design, scale, and massing to the proposed development; and 

Item F - 7 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 8 

 
(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 

location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the Cluster Homes 
(Planning Area 25) land use district of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan, including standards relative to the 
particular land use proposed (single-family residential), as-well-as building intensity, building and parking 
setbacks, building height, number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, 
and fences, walls and obstructions. The project will be surrounded by similar single-family residential 
products, including similar cluster products to the south, small-lot conventional products to the west and 
small- and large-lot conventional products to the north, and a Southern California Edison (SCE) easement 
to the east; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan are 
maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will 
not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which 
it is located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy 
Plan components of The Ontario Plan, and the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. Additionally, the environmental 
impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the Subarea 29 Specific Plan 
Environmental Impact Report (SCH#2004011009). This application is consistent with the previously-
adopted EIR and introduces no new significant environmental impacts; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan that are applicable to the proposed Project, 
including building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking, 
design and landscaping, on-site landscaping, and fences and walls, as-well-as those development 
standards and guidelines specifically related to the particular land use being proposed (Single-Family 
Cluster Homes). As a result of this review, the Development Advisory Board has determined that the 
Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the 
development standards and guidelines described in the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. Additionally, the 
Development Plan complies with all provisions of the Cluster Home Residential Product Development 
Standards of the Subarea 29 Specific Plan. 
 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment 1 of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 

Item F - 8 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 9 

 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of October, 2017. 

 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item F - 9 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

 Page 10 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 

 
 

 
  

Item F - 10 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 11 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN 
 

 

Item F - 11 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 12 

Exhibit C—FLOOR PLAN and EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS: PLAN 1 
 
 

 

 

Item F - 12 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 13 

 
 

Item F - 13 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 14 

 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 14 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 15 

 
FLOOR PLAN and EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS: PLAN 2 

 

 
 
 

Item F - 15 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 16 

 
 
 

Item F - 16 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 17 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 18 

FLOOR PLAN and EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS: PLAN 3 
 

 

Item F - 18 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 19 

 
 

Item F - 19 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 20 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item F - 20 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 21 

FLOOR PLAN and EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS: PLAN 4 
 

 

Item F - 21 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 22 

 
 
 

Item F - 22 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 23 

 
 
  

Item F - 23 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

Page 24 

Exhibit D— CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN 
 

 

Item F - 24 of 47



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-030 
October 16, 2017 
 
 

 Page 25 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 1—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item F - 25 of 47



Item F - 26 of 47



Item F - 27 of 47



Item F - 28 of 47



Item F - 29 of 47



Item F - 30 of 47



Item F - 31 of 47



Item F - 32 of 47



Item F - 33 of 47



Item F - 34 of 47



Item F - 35 of 47



Item F - 36 of 47



Item F - 37 of 47



Item F - 38 of 47



Item F - 39 of 47



Item F - 40 of 47



Item F - 41 of 47



Item F - 42 of 47



Item F - 43 of 47



Item F - 44 of 47



Item F - 45 of 47



Item F - 46 of 47



Item F - 47 of 47


	20171016_DAB Agenda
	AGENDA
	October 16, 2017
	Hassan Haghani, Development Director
	John P. Andrews, Economic Development Director
	Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department


	20171016_Item A-Minutes
	BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT
	STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

	20171016_Item B-PMTT16-003
	20171016_Item C-PMTT16-021
	20171016 File No. PMTT16-021 (TPM 19787)^01 AR
	20171016 File No. PMTT16-021 (TPM 19787)^02 COA

	20171016_Item D-PMTT17-002
	20171016_Item E-PDEV17-035
	20171016_Item F-PDEV17-030



